
 

1 

 
 
 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Monday, 18th October, 2010 
 
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Simon Hill, Senior Democratic Services Officer,  The Office of 
the Chief Executive 
email: shill@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 01992 564249 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors R Morgan (Chairman), K Angold-Stephens (Vice-Chairman), R Barrett, 
W Breare-Hall, Ms R Brookes, Mrs R Gadsby, Mrs A Grigg, D Jacobs, D C Johnson, 
G Mohindra, J Philip and J M Whitehouse 
 
 
 
 

PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS TO ATTEND 
 

 
 

 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 

 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet site - 
at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act. Data collected 
during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s published policy and copies made 
available to those who request it.. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for web casting and/or training 
purposes. If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper 
council chamber public gallery area 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic Services Officer on 01992 
564249. 
 
 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking.  
 



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Monday, 18 October 2010 
 

2 

2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“This meeting will be webcast live to the Internet and will be archived for later viewing. 
Copies of recordings may be made available on request. 
 
By entering the chamber’s lower seating area you consenting to becoming part of the 
webcast. 
 
If you wish to avoid being filmed you should move to the public gallery or speak to the 
webcasting officer” 
 

 2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 3. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive). To report the appointment of any substitute 
members for the meeting.  
 

 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive). To declare interests in any items on the agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member. 
 
Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 
matter. 
 

 5. MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 60) 
 

  Decisions required: 
 

To confirm the minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 06 
September 2010.  

 
 6. PRESENTATION FROM EPPING FOREST COLLEGE   

 
  To receive a short presentation from the Principal of Epping Forest College, Jeannie 

Wright on their vision for the future and the College’s relationship with the Community. 
 

 7. DEPUTY PORTFOLIO HOLDERS - REPORT OF CONSTITUTION & MEMBER 
SERVICES STANDING SCRUTINY PANEL (23.9.10)  (Pages 61 - 70) 

 
  (Councillor Mrs M. McEwen) To  consider the attached report of the Constitution and 

Member Services Standing Panel. 
 



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Monday, 18 October 2010 
 

3 

 8. CABINET & OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - ADDRESSES BY THE 
PUBLIC  (Pages 71 - 78) 

 
  (Councillor Mrs M. MacEwen) To consider a report of the Constitution & Member 

Services Standing Scrutiny Panel. 
 

 9. CANCELLATION OF MEETINGS  (Pages 79 - 80) 
 

  (Councillor Mrs M. MacEwen) To consider the attached report of the Constitution & 
Member Services Standing Scrutiny Panel. 
 

 10. WORK PROGRAMME MONITORING  (Pages 81 - 100) 
 

  (a) To consider the updated work programme 
 
The current Overview and Scrutiny work programme is attached for information. 
 
(b) Reserve Programme 

 
A reserve list of scrutiny topics is required to ensure that the work flow of OSC is 
continuous.  
 
OSC will ‘pull out’ items from the list and  allocate them accordingly  once space 
becomes available in the work plan following  the completion of  existing reviews.  
 
Members can put forward any further suggestions for inclusion in the reserve list  
either during the meeting or at a later date. 
 
Existing review items will be dealt with first, then time will be allocated to the items 
contained in the reserve work plan.  

 
 11. CHILDREN SERVICES TASK AND FINISH PANEL - TERMS OF REFERENCE  

(Pages 101 - 102) 
 

  Recommendation: 
  

To endorse the terms of reference for the Children Services Task and Finish 
Panel. 

  
The Committee is asked to consider and endorse the terms of references for the new 
Children Services Task and Finish Panel considered at their first meeting.  
 
 
 

 12. CABINET REVIEW   
 

  RECOMMENDATION: 
 

To consider any items to be raised by the Chairman at the Cabinet meeting on 
25 October 2010. 

 
(Assistant to the Chief Executive). Under the Overview and Scrutiny rules the 
Committee is required to scrutinise proposed decisions of the Executive. The 



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Monday, 18 October 2010 
 

4 

Chairman is also required to report on such discussions to the Cabinet. 
 
The Committee is asked to consider the 25 October 2010 Cabinet agenda (previously 
circulated) to see whether there are any items that they wished to be raised at the 
Cabinet meeting. 
 

 13. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 
Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 

Paragraph Number 
Nil Nil Nil 

 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Monday, 18 October 2010 
 

5 

responsible for the item. 
 

 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MINUTES 

 
Committee: Overview and Scrutiny Committee Date: Monday, 6 September 

2010 
    
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Time: 7.30  - 9.28 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

Councillors R Morgan (Chairman) K Angold-Stephens (Vice-Chairman) 
R Barrett, W Breare-Hall, Ms R Brookes, Mrs R Gadsby, Mrs A Grigg, 
D Jacobs, D C Johnson, G Mohindra, J Philip and J M Whitehouse 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

Councillors R Bassett, Mrs P Brooks, Mrs T Cochrane, Mrs D Collins, 
Mrs M Sartin, D Stallan, Ms S Stavrou, Mrs L Wagland, C Whitbread and 
D Wixley 

  
Apologies:  
  
Officers 
Present: 

D Macnab (Acting Chief Executive), A Mitchell (Assistant Director (Legal)), 
L MacNeill (Assistant Director (Operations, Administration & Finance)), 
J Gilbert (Director of Environment and Street Scene), S G Hill (Senior 
Democratic Services Officer), V Loftis (Market Research Consultation 
Officer), A Hendry (Democratic Services Officer) and M Jenkins (Democratic 
Services Assistant) 

  
By 
Invitation: 

T Jones (Connect Plus M25) 
 
 

28. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman reminded everyone present that the meeting would be broadcast live 
to the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the webcasting of its 
meetings. 
 

29. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  
 
There were no substitute Members for the meeting.  
 

30. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the last meeting of the Committee held on 12 July 2010 
be agreed subject to the alteration of ‘19 years’ to ‘35 years’ in minute item 
18. 

 
 

31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest made pursuant to the Council’s Code of 
Member Conduct. 
 

32. 'CONNECT PLUS M25' PRESENTATION  

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 September 2010 

 
The Committee Chairman welcomed Tim Jones, the CEO of ‘Connect Plus’ the 
company that had the contract to maintain the M25 and had been appointed the 
preferred bidder to design, build, finance and operate the M25 project. He informed 
the Committee that the company had a thirty year contract with the Government via 
the Highways Agency and were spending the equivalent of a million pounds a day on 
remedial works and updating and enlarging some carriageways. They were at 
present refurbishing the Hatfield Tunnel. (A copy of his presentation slides are 
attached to these minutes) 
 
The company worked closely with the Highways Agency and ‘Metronet’, with the 
Highways Agency also having a seat on their board. Their contract was due to end in 
September 2039. 
 
The Committee noted that the government were considering turning the area around 
the Dartford Crossing into a managed motorway, putting in a free flowing tolling 
section for the crossing. 
 
They were also particularly proud of their Health and Safety record, having had no 
reportable accidents in over 1.6 million hours worked. The vast majority of work was 
done at night so as not to disrupt traffic. They had main operations and maintenance 
depots at South Mimms and Dartford and have a smaller depot at Blunts Farm, 
Theydon Bois. 
 
The company had to take a long term view (30 years) of the works they have to do 
and had developed a supply chain with an eye to achieving best value.  
 
The Chairman then opened the meeting to questions from the Committee and other 
members. 
 
Q. What are the options to improve the flow through the Dartford Crossing? 
A. This had recently been made worse by the periodic closure of the Blackwall 
Tunnel. Also with the crossing it only needed one breakdown or fire and that would 
slow things down considerably. Free flow tolling would help considerably especially 
on the North to South crossing, but revenue collection would pose a challenge. It 
should also be noted that the crossing was not a Motorway, it’s classed as an ‘A’ 
road, and the occasional cyclist does tend to use it.  The ultimate solution would be a 
separate lower Thames crossing point. 
 
Q.  Density of traffic means that certain parts of the motorway wears out quicker 
than other parts. Has this been taken into account? 
A. Yes it has. The M25 had been constructed to various standards over the 
different sections as they were being built. Various companies are looking at new 
ways to repave the surface for the future. 
 
Q. The toll charge has gone up from £1 to £1.50, is this adding to the 
congestion. Is this money used for renewal and maintenance and would having no 
charge improve the flow. 
A. Only 6,000 people and hour can go through the crossing anyway.  Officially it 
is a charge and not a toll, and the money goes to the exchequer. Also a lot of people 
do not wait for their change and just drive through. 
 
Annually £70million is collected but it takes between £16 to £19 million to run per 
annum. 
 

Page 8



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 September 2010 

Q. Congratulations on the work done so far. But my pet hate is average speed 
cameras, do you actually put film in them and are people fined? 
A. Yes, there is film in them and people are charged. They are needed at 
construction and works sites, some people find them frustrating but for safety they 
are necessary. 
 
Q.  I live by Junction 27, the lighting is now better, but:  

• It now seems directed outwards and not towards the road;  
• also noticed that the road was very noisy especially at the junction with 

the M11;  
• why are concrete blocks used as barriers now instead of the metal ones;  
• when will you be finishing at Blunts Farm? and 
• why was there no consultation on the erection of the gantry? 

A. I will have the lighting checked out and also the noise;  apologies about the 
gantry,  it should have been part of a consultation; We have been at Blunts Farm a 
long time, it is substandard as it’s too small and very old. Concrete barriers have 
proved to be much safer than the metal ones. 
 
Q. Predicting road capacity over a thirty year period, how do you predict it and 
what figures are you looking at. 
A. We work closely with the Highways Agency, we generally expect a 2% growth 
per year, this would eventually prove unsustainable. We also need to predict what 
would happen with electric cars, which may be lighter and thus cause less wear on 
the roads surfaces. They are also looking to move more goods via the railways. The 
biggest issues at present would be the future of the Dartford crossing. 
 
Q. Is there much research carried out into road surfaces? 
A. Yes there is, at present they are looking at concrete surfacing as concrete 
wears better than tarmac. 
 
Mr Jones offered to arrange a visit to Junction 29 for the members, for them to go 
and see for themselves some of the work being carried out. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Jones for his interesting presentation and hoped he would 
come again in the future to update members on progress made. 
 

33. CALL-IN - CABINET DECISION ON SPORTS AND LEISURE MANAGEMENT 
CONTRACT EXTENSION NEGOTIATIONS  
 
The Committee considered the call-in of a decision by the Cabinet of a Leisure and 
Wellbeing Portfolio Holder report (C-009-2010/11) regarding the suspension of the 
new sports hall at Waltham Abbey swimming Pool and to reconsider it as part of the 
annual review of the Council’s capital programme. The call-in suggested that any net 
savings made should be re-invested in Waltham Abbey, a known area of deprivation.  
The efficient time to do this was now while the Council was re-negotiating with SLM. 
 
The lead member of the call-in, Councillor Mrs Pat Brooks was asked to open the 
discussion. She said that the Cabinet had taken no account of assurances given to 
residents.  It seems like Waltham Abbey resident’s wellbeing had been sacrificed. 
King Harold School now runs the sports centre successfully, but cannot handle the 
long term needs of casual users. In addition the sports centre has limitations 
particularly for those with disabilities. Waltham Abbey contains some of the most 
deprived areas in the district.  This new hall can be funded now by revenue savings 
from the closure of the sports centre. If not, she could see the decision being 
deferred indefinitely. 
 

Page 9



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 September 2010 

The responsible Portfolio Holder, Councillor B Rolfe, was then asked to make his 
opening statement. He said that Epping Forest has an established policy on using 
capital resources where there is a demonstrable revenue benefit. The sports centre 
does not meet this requirement as it would cost £50,000 extra per annum. There 
were no obvious financial benefits on taking this forward at this time, but it will be 
taken to the planning application stage.  The Council had good relations with SLM 
and could arrange terms later when needed. He acknowledged that Waltham Abbey 
has some deprived areas in the district but it did have other fitness facilities and a 
swimming pool. Although there was a loss of a specialist gym and a summer play 
scheme, the Council were also looking to put in an ‘astro’ turf all weather pitch in 
Waltham Abbey at a cost of £507,000 and we have also recently opened a 
refurbished Ninefield Hall. There are also other deprived areas in the district such as 
Limes Farm and Debden. 
  
This would be good if the scheme could proceed but the current financial position 
makes this impossible for now. 
 
Councillor Jon Whitehouse asked what criteria was used for the yearly assessment 
of the Sports Hall and how many years could this go on for?  Councillor Rolfe replied 
that the criteria was only a financial one at present and the situation would have to be 
reviewed annually over the next two or three years. Councillor Whitehouse was glad 
to find out that the criterion was only a matter of finance. He thought there was a 
need to look at the leisure contract in the round and see if the savings made could 
pay for the new hall. There was a danger of postponing the decision and have the 
savings absorbed into the budget as a whole and not have to invest in Waltham 
Abbey. The money could be spent on other things within a year or two. Also 
construction costs would increase over the years and there was a good case for 
doing it now, and there was a strong case for the Cabinet to look at it again. 
 
Councillor Jacobs commented that a couple of years ago the Council was very keen 
for this to go ahead; Waltham Abbey people had been given an expectation that it 
would. Councillor Philips disagreed because of the current financial position the 
Council was looking at significant cuts in October, maybe of an order of 25%. He did 
not believe that the council had set up an expectation in Waltham Abbey and they will 
take it to the pre-planning stage. We would know by then what cuts we would have to 
make. 
 
Councillor Johnson was disappointed that it was to be postponed but heartened that 
it would be reviewed. He did not think that any savings made would pay for the 
construction; he calculated it would leave the council £700k short. 
 
The lead member responsible for the call-in and the Portfolio Holder were asked to 
sum up the debate. 
 
Councillor Mrs Brooks had nothing to add to comments already made. 
 
Councillor Rolfe reiterated his comments about the council’s finances being uncertain 
in the coming year and the need for savings. He stressed that they were a number of 
alternative leisure related schemes happening at present in Waltham Abbey. The 
Cabinet were not against this scheme, but he noted that Limes Farm and Debden 
had similar problems and there was only a limited amount of money at present. The 
current financial climate had forced these changes. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

Page 10



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 September 2010 

That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee confirmed the original decision of 
the Cabinet on report C-009-2009/10, regarding the suspension of the new 
sports hall at Waltham Abbey swimming Pool and to consider it as part of the 
annual review of the Council’s capital programme. 

 
34. CONSULTATION ON 'POLICING IN THE 21ST CENTURY - RECONNECTING 

POLICE AND THE PEOPLE'  
 
The Committee considered a Home Office consultation paper on ‘Policing in the 21st 
Century – Reconnecting police and the people’. This had previously gone to the 
Safer Cleaner Greener Scrutiny Standing Panel on 26 August 2010 and the draft 
minutes from that meeting were tabled for the committee’s information. 
 
Members noted that page 49 of the agenda contained a table of suggested 
consultation responses and the tabled minutes had the Safer Cleaner Greener 
Panel’s response to some of the responses. 
 
On going through the responses, the Committee made the following comments: 
 

• That any new panels that oversee the work of the police commissioner should 
have a direct relationship with the commissioner and be able to hold them to 
account. 

 
• Question 1: The proposed Commissioner would not be working alone; they 

would have an office to do the admin work so there would be cost implications 
to this. It could cause some democratic difficulties with a candidate that could 
come from anywhere and the chance of getting a reasonable turnout at an 
election was remote, making the chances of getting a potentially unsuitable 
commissioner a risk.  

 
• Question 18: This calls for senior police officers to take a more business-like 

approach, but is hampered by the quick turn-around in senior officers. It 
would call for forward planning and preserving a continuity of senior police 
officers. 

 
• There was a need to continue collecting data so we could compare forces. 

 
• It seems we have limited powers to scrutinise the commissioner and his 

office.   
 

• Overall this was a good concept;  
 

• we want more front line policing; and  
 

• would we get a better service or make more savings because of this; it was 
not clear and the Committee would like this clarified.  

 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
(1) That the Home Office consultation paper on the future of policing be noted. 
(2) That the responses made by officers and the Safer Cleaner Greener Scrutiny 

Standing Panel be agreed with the additional comments made by this 
Committee and reported to the Cabinet. 

 
35. CONSULTATION ON 'REBALANCING THE LICENSING ACT'  

Page 11



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 September 2010 

 
The Committee considered a consultation document on licensing entitled 
“Rebalancing the Licensing Act 2010”. The Assistant Director, Legal Services, Alison 
Mitchell introduced the consultation document. The document was looking to give 
local licensing authorities additional powers to regulate licensing in their area and to 
allow them to respond more effectively to local concerns. The closing date for this 
review was 8 September 2010.  
 
Officers had suggested answers to the consultation questions taking into account 
issues that have been raised in the past and committee members were also provided 
with the response from the Safer Cleaner Greener Standing Panel that looked at this 
on 26 August 2010. 
 
The Committee made the following comments on the question posed: 
 

• Question 5: On issuing of boundary notices, the position should be reversed 
with the Council being allowed to advertise on their web site, without 
prejudice, as part of the consultation process and to enable the applicant to 
advertise elsewhere other than the local newspapers. 

 
• Question 14: the officer’s suggested answer should be reworded to ‘we’ 

instead if ‘I’. 
 

• Question 25: Could a question be included on how we could go about setting 
our own consultation fees so that we could get back some of the fee money 
collected.  

 
• As a general comment the committee wanted to know how wide an area 

would be defined for any proposed widening of the consultation areas. 
 

• It was important for Town or Parish Councils to be considered as interested 
parties. 

 
 RESOLVED: 
 

That the suggested replies to the questions raised in the Government’s 
consultation document ‘Rebalancing the Licensing Act 2010’ be endorsed 
subject to the Safer Cleaner Greener member’s comments as reported and 
the additional comments made by this meeting. 

 
36. WORK PROGRAMME MONITORING  

 
(a)  Work programme 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Item 7: Epping Forest College - noted that the principal had been asked to attend the 
October meeting. Officers would like to know if there were any specific topics they 
would like covered. Members wanted to know:  

• what their academic objectives were for the next few years; 
• what their plans were for community engagement; and 
• what plans they have for the use of their sports field. 

 
(b) Standing Panels 
 
Planning Services Scrutiny Standing Panel 

Page 12



Overview and Scrutiny Committee  6 September 2010 

 
The Chairman of the Panel, Councillor J Philip gave a brief outline of the Panel’s 
work at their last meeting: 
 
The Panel met on Thursday 2 September and discussed the following: 
 

• New Improvement Plan for 2010/11 
• Considered proposed re-structure of Countrycare, which involved the creation 

of an additional Countryside Assistant and the deletion of one Assistant 
Countryside Manager Post. 

• The Panel will be looking at types of planning applications from the past few 
years regarding lessons that may be learnt about the planning process 

• The Panel recommended that performance indicator targets LPI 45 Planning 
appeals and NI 157(b) Processing of Minor Applications be changed. 

• The Panel will need to schedule an extra meeting in early October to discuss 
consultations on the Core Strategies for both Broxbourne Borough Council 
and East Herts District Council.  

 
 
 

37. CABINET REVIEW  
 
It was noted that there was no business to report to the Cabinet. 

 
CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



©Alis

E
pp

in
g 

F
or

es
tD

is
tr

ic
tC

ou
nc

il
E

pp
in

g

1

M
25

:A
n

ov
er

vi
ew

T
im

 J
on

es
C

on
ne

ct
P

lu
s

6
S

ep
t2

01
0

Minute Item 32

Page 9Page 15



A
ge

nd
a

2

M
25

-
no

w
an

d 
th

en
E

ss
ex

 In
te

rf
ac

e
S

co
pe

an
d

C
ha

lle
ng

es

C
on

tr
ac

tS
tr

uc
tu

re

T
he

30
Y

ea
r

V
ie

w

Page 10Page 16



C
on

tr
ac

tS
tr

uc
tu

re

3

Page 11Page 17



In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

•
C

on
tr

ac
tA

w
ar

d
in

un
ce

rt
ai

n
fin

an
ci

al
m

ar
ke

ts

•
C

on
tr

ac
tp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
w

ith
un

ce
rt

ai
n

go
ve

rn
m

en
tf

un
di

ng

•
M

ee
tin

g
de

m
an

d
an

d
pl

an
ni

ng
fo

r
gr

ow
th

•
Jo

ur
ne

y 
tim

e
re

lia
bi

lit
y

•
S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
en

ga
ge

m
en

t

4

Page 12Page 18



T
h

e
K

ey
 In

g
re

d
ie

n
ts

to
S

u
cc

es
s

•
Im

po
rt

an
ce

of
va

ria
nt

pr
op

os
al

s
•

H
A

ev
al

ua
te

d
qu

al
ity

un
de

r
fiv

e
br

oa
d

he
ad

in
gs

–
de

liv
er

y,
 r

es
ou

rc
es

,
pr

oc
es

se
s,

be
ha

vi
ou

rs
 /

va
lu

es
an

d
pr

ic
in

g
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
–

ha
rm

on
y

ac
ro

ss
al

l5
cr

iti
ca

lly
im

po
rt

an
t

•
P

ric
e

w
as

ke
y

–
be

st
va

lu
e

es
se

nt
ia

l
•

C
on

ne
ct

P
lu

s
–

no
tj

us
ta

gr
ou

p
of

se
co

nd
ee

s
fr

om
di

ffe
re

nt
sh

ar
eh

ol
de

rs
•

S
tr

on
g

su
pp

ly
ch

ai
n

•
A

dv
an

ce
d

W
or

ks
A

gr
ee

m
en

te
na

bl
ed

im
m

ed
ia

te
st

ar
to

n
F

in
an

ci
al

C
lo

se

5

Page 13Page 19



N
ot

es
:

S
ta

ke
h

o
ld

er
E

xp
ec

ta
ti

o
n

s
L

en
d

er
s

&
S

h
ar

eh
o

ld
er

s

C
o

n
n

ec
t

P
lu

s
S

er
vi

ce
s

B
al

fo
ur

B
ea

tty
52

.5
%

,
A

tk
in

s
32

.5
%

,E
gi

s
15

%

S
ka

n
sk

a
B

al
fo

u
r

B
ea

tt
y

Jo
in

t
V

en
tu

re
S

ka
ns

ka
50

%
,

B
al

fo
ur

B
ea

tty
50

%

C
o

n
n

ec
t

P
lu

s

S
ec

re
ta

ry
o

f
S

ta
te

S
h

ar
eh

o
ld

er
s

S
ka

n
sk

a
40

%
B

al
fo

u
r

B
ea

tt
y

40
%

A
tk

in
s

10
%

E
g

is
10

%

L
en

d
er

s

C
o

n
n

ec
t

P
lu

s
S

u
p

p
ly

C
h

ai
n

T
ar

m
ac

La
fa

rg
e

A
gg

re
ga

te
In

du
st

rie
s

V
ol

ke
r

La
se

r
Ja

ck
so

ns
C

iv
ils

Page 14Page 20



P
ar

tn
er

s
-

C
o

n
n

ec
t

P
lu

s 
co

n
si

st
s

o
f:

-

7

Page 15Page 21



K
ey

D
at

es

•
‘P

re
fe

rr
ed

bi
dd

er
’s

ta
tu

s
:J

ul
y

20
08

•
F

in
an

ci
al

C
lo

se
:M

ay
20

09

•
S

ta
rt

w
id

en
in

g
W

or
ks

:M
ay

20
09

•
S

er
vi

ce
C

om
m

en
ce

m
en

tD
at

e
:S

ep
te

m
be

r
20

09

•
IU

S
C

om
pl

et
io

n
:8

Ju
ly

20
12

•
LU

S
S

ta
rt

:A
ut

um
n

20
12

•
R

ef
in

an
ci

ng
:S

pr
in

g
20

16

•
C

on
tr

ac
tC

om
pl

et
io

n
:S

ep
te

m
be

r
20

39

8

Page 16Page 22



M
25

–
no

w
an

d 
th

en

9

Page 17Page 23



T
h

e
M

25
:

C
u

rr
en

t
C

o
n

fi
g

u
ra

ti
o

n

10

H
o

lm
sd

al
e

&
B

el
l

C
o

m
m

o
n

tu
n

n
el

s

D
ar

tf
o

rd
C

ro
ss

in
g

D
u

al
fo

u
r

la
n

es

D
u

al
fo

u
r

la
n

es

T
5 

lin
k

Page 18Page 24



C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

W
o

rk
s:

S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

11

Page 19Page 25



C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

W
o

rk
s:

S
ec

ti
o

n
 4

12

Page 20Page 26



C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

W
o

rk
s:

S
ec

ti
o

n
 6

–
H

at
fi

el
d

T
u

n
n

el
R

ef
u

rb
is

h
m

en
t

13

Page 21Page 27



C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

:
O

ve
rv

ie
w

w
it

h
F

u
tu

re
u

p
g

ra
d

es

14

S
5

-
M

an
ag

ed
M

o
to

rw
ay

s

S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

S
ec

ti
o

n
 4

S
ec

ti
o

n
 6

S
2

-
M

an
ag

ed
M

o
to

rw
ay

s

D
ar

tf
o

rd
C

ro
ss

in
g

Page 22Page 28



E
ss

ex
 In

te
rf

ac
e

15

Page 23Page 29



16

T
h

e
M

25
&

E
ss

ex

Page 24Page 30



W
h

at
w

e 
h

av
e 

d
o

n
e.

..

•
F

ou
rt

h
la

ne
on

th
e

an
ti

cl
oc

kw
is

e
an

d
cl

oc
kw

is
e

ca
rr

ia
ge

w
ay

co
m

pl
et

e
in

cl
ud

in
g

em
er

ge
nc

y
ac

ce
ss

 r
ou

te
s;

re
ta

in
in

g
w

al
l;

dr
ai

na
ge

;l
ig

ht
in

g
co

lu
m

ns
an

d
pe

rm
an

en
tf

en
ci

ng
•

11
ga

nt
rie

s
in

st
al

le
d

an
d

co
m

m
s

be
in

g
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

•
In

to
ph

as
e

4
tr

af
fic

ru
nn

in
g

on
ha

rd
sh

ou
ld

er
,l

an
e

1
an

d
2

du
rin

g
ce

nt
ra

l
re

se
rv

e
w

or
ks

•
P

la
nt

ed
21

,5
06

7
sh

ru
bs

an
d 

tr
ee

s
cl

oc
kw

is
e,

ap
pr

ox
23

,0
00

 to
be

pl
an

te
d

on
an

ti
cl

oc
kw

is
e

•
4a

w
or

ks
w

er
e

co
m

pl
et

e
in

Ju
ly

20
10

Page 25Page 31



P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

4b
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

•
ad

va
nc

ed
w

or
ks

fo
r

5
w

ee
ks

ov
er

w
in

te
r

m
ad

e
ba

ck
 ti

m
e

•
24

hr
/7

da
ys

a
w

ee
k

w
or

ki
ng

in
ce

nt
ra

l
re

se
rv

e
•

ve
ge

ta
tio

n
cl

ea
ra

nc
e

•
ne

w
ta

nd
 r

ep
til

e 
m

iti
ga

tio
n

•
w

or
ks

at
br

id
ge

s,
cc

tv
,d

ra
in

ag
e

•
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
of

U
pm

in
st

er
B

un
d

on
go

in
g

•
sh

ee
tp

ili
ng

4c
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

•
si

te
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

18

Page 26Page 32



U
p

d
at

e

H
ea

lt
h

an
d

S
af

et
y

•
th

e
pr

oj
ec

th
as

no
w

 c
om

pl
et

ed
1,

63
7,

82
5

sa
fe

ho
ur

s
w

or
ke

d 
–

ze
ro

re
po

rt
ab

le
ac

ci
de

nt
s

19

Page 27Page 33



20

P
ro

gr
es

s
pi

ct
ur

e
(M

ay
20

10
)

S
tu

de
nt

s
fr

om
S

aw
ye

rs
H

al
lC

ol
le

ge
on

a
on

e
da

y
vi

si
t /

si
te

to
ur

.
S

tu
de

nt
s

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

w
er

e
m

at
ch

ed
to

S
en

io
rm

an
ag

er
s

an
d 

th
ey

re
ce

iv
ed

in
te

ra
ct

iv
e

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

fr
om

he
al

th
an

d
sa

fe
ty

,S
tr

uc
tu

re
T

ea
m

Le
ad

er
,J

im
M

c
N

ic
ho

la
s

(C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
M

an
ag

er
)

an
d

C
al

vi
n

B
la

ck
er

(D
es

ig
n)

.
S

tu
de

nt
s

st
ud

yi
ng

ne
w

co
ur

se
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

th
e

B
ui

lt
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t.
T

he
IC

E
ar

e
al

so
ke

en
on

us
w

or
ki

ng
w

ith
st

ud
en

ts
of

co
ur

se
 to

en
co

ur
ag

e
th

em
in

to
 th

e
in

du
st

ry
.

Li
fti

ng
in

a
ga

nt
ry

G
ro

up
of

op
er

at
iv

es
w

ho
w

er
e

gi
ve

n
a

fr
ee

br
ea

kf
as

ti
n

re
co

gn
iti

on
of

th
e

pr
oj

ec
tr

ea
ch

in
g

1.
5m

sa
fe

ho
ur

s
w

or
ke

d,
35

0 
to

ok
up

 th
e

br
ea

kf
as

t.

U
pm

in
st

er
B

un
d

un
de

r
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n.
T

hi
s

bu
nd

w
ill

fin
al

ly
be

4m
ab

ov
e 

th
e

ca
rr

ia
ge

w
ay

an
d

is
 to

pr
ot

ec
t

th
e

re
si

de
nt

s
of

C
ra

nh
am

fr
om

 th
e

M
25

.

Page 28Page 34



L
an

d

•
w

or
k 

cl
os

el
y

w
ith

lo
ca

ll
an

d
ow

ne
rs

an
d

C
ou

nc
ils

•
lo

ok
in

g
at

tu
rn

in
g

at
te

nu
at

io
n

ta
nk

s 
to

P
on

ds
•

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n
gi

ve
n 

to
m

ov
e

fr
om

ha
rd

w
al

ls
in

to
ge

nt
le

sl
op

es
if

fe
as

ib
le

•
w

he
re

ve
r

po
ss

ib
le

en
su

re
w

e
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

n
sy

m
pa

th
y

w
ith

 th
e

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t

Page 29Page 35



T
ra

ff
ic

M
an

ag
em

en
t

•
4a

an
d

4c
 th

re
e

la
ne

s
in

co
nt

ra
flo

w
•

4b
na

rr
ow

la
ne

s
no

n
co

nt
ra

flo
w

•
50

m
ph

sp
ee

d
lim

it
•

B
ar

rie
r 

fo
r

al
lp

er
m

an
en

tw
or

ks
ar

ea
s

•
A

ll
si

te
dr

iv
er

s
re

ce
iv

e
dr

iv
er

 tr
ai

ni
ng

•
V

M
S

at
w

or
ks

ex
its

•
A

ut
om

at
ed

la
ne

cl
os

ur
e

im
pl

em
en

te
d

•
T

R
L

m
on

ito
rin

g 
flo

w
s

Page 30Page 36



D
ar

tf
o

rd
C

ro
ss

in
g

B
ri

d
g

e
•

13
7m

lo
ng

ca
bl

e-
st

ay
ed

•
O

ve
r

15
0,

00
0

ve
hi

cl
es

pe
r

da
y

us
e 

th
e

cr
os

si
ng

•
£7

0m
pe

r
ye

ar
re

ve
nu

e

T
u

n
n

el
s

•
19

63
-W

es
t-

bo
un

d
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d
•

19
80

-
E

as
tb

ou
nd

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d

K
ey

 Is
su

es
•

C
ha

rg
in

g
or

de
r

1
A

pr
03

•
D

an
ge

ro
us

 G
oo

ds
20

04
/S

4/
E

C
•

E
U

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

tu
nn

el
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
in

cl
ud

e
eq

ui
pm

en
t,

si
gn

ag
e

&
em

er
ge

nc
y

ex
its

Page 31Page 37



S
co

pe
an

d
C

ha
lle

ng
es

24

Page 32Page 38



T
h

e
sc

o
p

e
an

d
ch

al
le

n
g

es
o

f
th

e
co

n
tr

ac
t

-
C

o
n

n
ec

t
P

lu
s

C
o

n
n

ec
t

P
lu

s
–

th
e

S
P

V

•
R

ob
us

tS
P

V
–

H
A

fa
ci

ng
–

st
ro

ng
go

ve
rn

an
ce

•
Li

fe
cy

cl
e

m
an

ag
em

en
t-

£1
bn

ov
er

30
ye

ar
s

•
Le

ve
ra

ge
in

no
va

tio
n

an
d

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s

25

•
M

ai
nt

ai
n

go
ve

rn
an

ce

•
M

an
ag

in
g

16
ba

nk
s

+
E

IB

•
Le

ad
in

g
on

te
ch

ni
ca

li
nn

ov
at

io
n

•
D

el
iv

er
in

g
a

ro
bu

st
en

er
gy

st
ra

te
gy

•
M

an
ag

em
en

to
fk

ey
su

b-
co

nt
ra

ct
s

an
d

lif
ec

yc
le

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s

•
M

an
ag

in
g 

th
e

P
ay

m
en

tM
ec

ha
ni

sm

Page 33Page 39



T
h

e
sc

o
p

e
an

d
ch

al
le

n
g

es
o

f
th

e
co

n
tr

ac
t

-
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

•
67

km
of

ro
ad

w
id

en
in

g
in

38
m

on
th

s
•

R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
to

f2
x

1k
m

bo
re

s
at

H
at

fie
ld

26

K
ey

F
ac

ts

•
£1

m
pe

r
da

y
sp

en
d

•
2.

5
x

in
te

ns
ity

of
M

1
Ju

nc
tio

ns
6a

 –
10 •

70
0

st
af

f&
de

si
gn

er
s

•
1,

00
0

si
te

st
af

f

•
2m

ho
ur

s
w

or
ke

d
w

ith
ou

ta
R

ID
D

O
R

K
ey

R
is

ks
•M

ai
nt

ai
n

pr
og

ra
m

m
e

•S
ec

ur
e

ke
y

de
pa

rt
ur

es
–

ph
ys

ic
al

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s

•B
ui

ld
in

pr
og

ra
m

m
e

co
nt

in
ge

nc
y

w
ith

in
T

M
ru

le
s

•B
al

an
ci

ng
w

or
ks

an
d 

tr
af

fic
co

ng
es

tio
n

S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

41
km

S
ec

ti
o

n
 4

26
km

S
ec

ti
o

n
 6

H
at

fi
el

d
T

u
n

n
el

Page 34Page 40



M
1

Ju
n

ct
io

n
6a

–
10

w
id

en
in

g

27

Page 35Page 41



M
1

Ju
n

ct
io

n
6a

–
10

w
id

en
in

g

28

Page 36Page 42



N
ot

es
:

S
ec

tio
n 

4 
Jc

t2
7

to
30

ov
er

vi
ew

4a
Ju

ly
09

to
A

u
g

10
(4

7w
ks

)

4b
A

u
g

10
to

A
p

r
11

(3
4

w
ks

)

4c
A

p
r

11
to

M
ay

12
(4

9
w

ks
)

(1
4.

3m
/2

3k
m

)

Page 37Page 43



M
25

-
S

4
w

id
en

in
g

30

Page 38Page 44



M
25

-
S

4
w

id
en

in
g

31

Page 39Page 45



R
et

ai
n

ed
 In

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
P

ro
p

o
sa

l

R
et

ai
ne

d:

•
E

xi
st

in
g

C
en

tr
al

R
es

er
ve

pa
vi

ng

•
E

xi
st

in
g

dr
ai

na
ge

•
N

ew
V

C
B

•
E

xi
st

in
g

V
C

B
an

d
pi

er
pr

ot
ec

tio
n

•
E

xi
st

in
g

C
en

tr
al

R
es

er
ve

pa
vi

ng

•
E

xi
st

in
g

dr
ai

na
ge

32

Page 40Page 46



C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

•
R

es
tr

ai
ne

d
by

T
ra

ffi
c

M
an

ag
em

en
tr

ul
es

•
M

ax
12

km
se

ct
io

ns
/D

iv
id

es
ea

ch
se

ct
io

n
in

to
 3

•
U

si
ng

co
nt

ra
-f

lo
w

on
ly

on
e

ve
rg

e
ca

n
be

w
or

ke
d

at
a

tim
e

•
A

ve
ra

ge
of

5
m

on
th

s
pe

r
12

km
se

ct
io

n
of

ve
rg

e

•
A

ve
ra

ge
of

4
m

on
th

s
pe

r
12

km
se

ct
io

n
of

C
en

tr
al

R
es

er
ve

•
S

om
e

ov
er

la
pp

in
g

an
d

no
n

co
nt

ra
-f

lo
w

 to
hi

t3
9

m
on

th
s

ov
er

al
l

•
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
R

ob
us

tn
es

s 
/ E

nd
 D

at
e 

C
er

ta
in

ty
:

•
R

at
io

na
liz

e
T

M
ru

le
s

•
A

pp
ro

ve
D

ep
ar

tu
re

s 
to

be
st

us
e

sp
ac

e
&

re
du

ce
di

sr
up

tio
n

an
d

tim
e

•
S

co
pe

fo
r

of
fli

ne
w

or
ki

ng
fr

om
ad

ja
ce

nt
la

nd
un

de
r

re
vi

ew

33

Page 41Page 47



34

Page 42Page 48



O
p

er
at

io
n

s
an

d
M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

:
O

ve
rv

ie
w

35

S
o

u
th

M
im

m
s

D
ar

tf
o

rd
C

ro
ss

in
g

Page 43Page 49



O
p

er
at

io
n

s
an

d
M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

:
O

ve
rv

ie
w

36

S
o

u
th

M
im

m
s

D
ar

tf
o

rd
C

ro
ss

in
g

B
lu

n
t’

s
F

ar
m

S
w

an
le

y

L
ea

th
er

h
ea

d

D
en

h
am

S
cr

at
ch

w
o

o
d

S
u

n
b

u
ry

Page 44Page 50



O
p

er
at

io
n

s
an

d
M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

:
O

ve
rv

ie
w

37

S
o

u
th

M
im

m
s

D
ar

tf
o

rd
C

ro
ss

in
g

B
lu

n
t’

s
F

ar
m

S
w

an
le

y

L
ea

th
er

h
ea

d

D
en

h
am

S
cr

at
ch

w
o

o
d

S
u

n
b

u
ry

G
o

d
st

o
n

e
R

C
C

S
o

u
th

M
im

m
s

R
C

C

Page 45Page 51



T
h

e
sc

o
p

e
an

d
ch

al
le

n
g

es
o

f
th

e
co

n
tr

ac
t

-
O

p
er

at
io

n
s

an
d

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce

38

S
o

u
th

M
im

m
s

D
ar

tf
o

rd
C

ro
ss

in
g

B
lu

n
t’

s
F

ar
m

S
w

an
le

y

L
ea

th
er

h
ea

d

D
en

h
am

S
cr

at
ch

w
o

o
d

S
u

n
b

u
ry

K
ey

F
ac

ts
•

£5
0m

an
nu

al
co

nt
ra

ct
•

65
0

st
af

f/
7

de
po

ts
in

cl
ud

in
g

D
ar

tfo
rd

•
2

co
nt

ro
lc

en
tr

es
(C

P
S

)
in

te
rf

ac
in

g
w

ith
H

A
R

C
C

s
•

O
pe

ra
tio

n
an

d
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
•

44
0k

m
ne

tw
or

k
•

5 
tu

nn
el

s
an

d
Q

E
II

br
id

ge

K
ey

C
h

al
le

n
g

es

•S
up

po
rt

D
B

F
O

C
o

in
as

se
t

m
an

ag
em

en
t

•
£2

50
m

lif
ec

yc
le

re
ne

w
al

s
•

M
ee

tin
g

ov
er

16
0

K
P

Is
•

M
ee

tin
g 

P
ay

m
en

t
M

ec
ha

ni
sm

•
In

te
gr

at
in

g
6

cu
ltu

re
s

Page 46Page 52



39

Page 47Page 53



T
he

 3
0 

Y
ea

r
V

ie
w

40

Page 48Page 54



A
ss

et
 in

te
lli

g
en

ce
:

so
u

rc
e

an
d

sy
st

em
s 41

Page 49Page 55



In
n

o
va

ti
o

n
an

d
th

e
S

u
p

p
ly

C
h

ai
n

42

Page 50Page 56



S
ig

n
p

o
st

s
to

th
e

fu
tu

re
...

•
In

te
gr

at
ed

ne
w

bu
ild

w
ith

O
&

M
of

ex
is

tin
g

as
se

ts
in

to
on

e
in

te
gr

at
ed

D
B

F
O

•
C

on
si

st
en

cy
of

ap
pr

oa
ch

an
d

se
rv

ic
e

ov
er

30
ye

ar
s

(n
ot

6x
5

ye
ar

 te
rm

co
nt

ra
ct

s)

•
W

ho
le

lif
e

co
st

fo
cu

s
an

d
ef

fe
ct

iv
e

ris
k

tr
an

sf
er

 to
gi

ve
be

st
va

lu
e

•
In

no
va

tio
n

an
d

sy
st

em
s

le
d,

e.
g.

pr
ed

ic
tiv

e
so

ftw
ar

e
su

pp
or

tin
g

as
se

tr
en

ew
al

s

•
A

bl
e 

to
co

pe
w

ith
fu

tu
re

ch
al

le
ng

es
:

–
C

ar
bo

n
–

E
ne

rg
y

–
D

ec
re

as
in

g
re

lia
nc

e
on

un
su

st
ai

na
bl

e
m

at
er

ia
ls

43

Page 51Page 57



©Alis

E
pp

in
g 

F
or

es
tD

is
tr

ic
tC

ou
nc

il
E

pp
in

g

44

M
25

:A
n

ov
er

vi
ew

T
im

 J
on

es
C

on
ne

ct
P

lu
s

6
S

ep
t2

01
0

Page 52Page 58



N
o

te
s

fo
llo

w
in

g
m

ee
ti

n
g

45

Fr
o
m
:

Li
z

T
ru

ck
le

S
e
n
t:

08
Se

pt
em

be
r

20
10

13
:1

9
T
o
:

'J
am

es
.R

ic
ha

rd
so

n@
sb

bj
v.

co
.u

k '
C
c:

'L
ou

is
e.

M
or

ga
n@

sb
bj

v.
co

.u
k '

;
Ti

m
H

in
ch

;
Fi

lip
pa

St
 A

ub
in

D
'A

nc
ey

S
u
b
je
ct
:

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

to
Es

se
x

-
Ep

pi
ng

Fo
re

st
D

is
tr

ic
t

C
ou

nc
il 

(6
Se

pt
)

by
T
im

Jo
ne

s
Ja

m
es

Ih
ad

a
su

cc
es

sf
ul

m
ee

tin
g

/p
re

se
nt

at
io

n
w

ith
th

e
m

em
be

rs
of

th
e

O
ve

rv
ie

w
an

d
S

cr
ut

in
y

C
om

m
itt

ee
on

M
on

da
y

6
S

ep
te

m
be

r
at

E
pp

in
g

F
or

es
t.

T
he

se
ar

e
a

fe
w

of
th

e
is

su
es

th
at

w
er

e
ra

is
ed

,a
s

pa
rt

of
th

e
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n,
w

hi
ch

Ib
el

ie
ve

Li
z

ha
s

se
nt

th
ro

ug
h

to
yo

u.

•M
em

be
rs

ap
pl

au
de

d
us

fo
rt

he
pr

og
re

ss
w

e
ha

ve
be

en
m

ak
in

g
•D

ar
tfo

rd
w

as
hi

gh
on

th
e

ag
en

da
,a

s
yo

u
ca

n
im

ag
in

e,
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

co
ng

es
tio

n
th

ro
ug

h
E

ss
ex

.
D

ar
tfo

rd
is

a
m

ov
in

g
ta

rg
et

at
th

e
m

om
en

t,
w

ith
re

ga
rd

 tw
o

in
iti

at
iv

es
em

er
gi

ng
fr

om
th

e
D

fT
re

ga
rd

in
g

fr
ee

flo
w

to
lli

ng
an

d
re

lie
vi

ng
th

e
da

ily
ch

ar
ge

in
th

e
ev

en
to

fs
ev

er
e

co
ng

es
tio

n.
M

ik
e

P
ut

na
m

an
d

A
nd

re
w

M
cN

au
gh

to
n

ar
e

m
ee

tin
g

G
ra

ha
m

D
al

to
n

to
m

or
ro

w
(T

hu
rs

) t
o

ex
pl

or
e

w
ay

s
to

ad
dr

es
s

D
ar

tfo
rd

go
in

g
fo

rw
ar

d.
•M

em
be

rs
w

er
e

co
nc

er
ne

d
ab

ou
tp

la
nn

in
g

fo
rt

he
gr

ow
th

of
 tr

af
fic

in
th

e
ne

xt
20

to
30

ye
ar

s
an

d
w

er
e

co
nc

er
ne

d
th

at
th

e
LU

S
(in

w
ha

te
ve

r
fo

rm
)

w
ou

ld
go

ba
ck

at
le

as
t5

ye
ar

s.
•A

nu
m

be
ro

fc
om

m
en

ts
w

er
e

ra
is

ed
ab

ou
tJ

27
in

cl
ud

in
g

no
is

y
su

rfa
ci

ng
,i

m
po

si
ng

ga
nt

rie
s

an
d

th
e

ov
er

br
ig

ht
le

ve
lo

fl
ig

ht
in

g
in

th
e

ar
ea

.
•T

he
y

w
er

e
co

nc
er

ne
d

w
ith

th
e

po
si

tio
ni

ng
of

th
e

B
lu

nt
s

F
ar

m
D

ep
ot

an
d

Ir
ea

ss
ur

ed
th

em
th

at
C

on
ne

ct
P

lu
s

is
co

nc
er

ne
d

ab
ou

ti
ts

lo
ng

te
rm

vi
ab

ili
ty

an
d

th
at

w
e

w
er

e
lo

ok
in

g
at

al
te

rn
at

iv
e

si
te

s

Iu
nd

er
st

an
d

yo
u

ar
e

pr
es

en
tin

g
on

m
y

be
ha

lf
at

th
e

E
E

H
B

LG
at

E
nf

ie
ld

to
m

or
ro

w
ev

en
in

g.
F

irs
tly

th
an

k
yo

u
fo

rd
oi

ng
th

is
–

an
d

se
co

nd
ly

,
if

yo
u

w
an

te
d

to
ta

lk
ab

ou
ta

ny
of

th
e

ab
ov

e
is

su
es

,p
le

as
e

ca
ll

m
e

on
m

y
m

ob
ile

on
th

e
ba

si
s

of
th

e
ab

ov
e

co
m

m
en

ts
,I

su
sp

ec
ty

ou
w

on
’t

ha
ve

a
ha

rd
 ti

m
e!

K
in

d
re

ga
rd

s
L

iz
T

ru
ck

le

Page 53Page 59



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Report to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
  
Date of meeting: 
 
Report of: 

18 October 2010 
 
Constitution & 
Member Services 
Standing Scrutiny 
Panel 

 

Portfolio Holder: Leader 
Subject: 
 

Deputies to Portfolio Holders 
Responsible Officer: 
 

I Willett (01992 564243) 
Democratic Services Officer: A Hendry (01992 564246) 
   
Recommendations: 
 
(1) That a report be submitted to the Council recommending as follows: 
 
(a) that positions of Deputy Portfolio Holders be introduced and included in the 
Council’s Constitution; 
 
(b) that the proposed amendments to Article 6 of the Constitution and the Executive 
Procedure Rules as shown in Appendix 2 to this report be approved; 
 
(c) that the Member Role Statement for Deputy Portfolio Holders set out in Appendix 3 to 
this report be approved. 
 
(2) That the application of Special Responsibility Allowance to Deputy Cabinet Member 
positions be deferred until 2011/12 to allow more time for these new positions to be assessed 
in their initial period of operation. 
 
Report: 
 
1. At the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 1 June 2010 
(Minute 9(b)(ii)) a proposal of Councillor C Whitbread concerning a review of the desirability 
of establishing Deputies to Portfolio Holders was referred to this Panel for consideration.  
A copy of this proposal is attached as Appendix 1. 
 
2. We were asked by the Committee to undertake a review of this idea and this report 
represents the Panel’s findings on the subject. 
 
3. The Committee will note that five specific review items were raised in Appendix 1 and 
these are dealt with in turn below: 
 
(a) Statutory restrictions on what a Deputy Portfolio Holder can undertake on 
behalf of a Cabinet member or the Cabinet itself 
 
4. We have been advised that Section 11(3) of the Local Government Act 2000 
prescribes that a Leader and Cabinet Executive must consist of no less than 3 Councillors 
(including a Leader) and no more than 10 (including a Leader).  Section 15(2) of that Act also 
prescribes that Executive functions can be carried out in the following ways: 

Agenda Item 7

Page 61



 
(i) by the Cabinet itself; 
 
(ii) by Members of the Cabinet individually; 
 
(iii) by Cabinet Committees;  and 
 
(iv) by Officers of the Council under delegation. 
 
5. Therefore we are satisfied that the Cabinet functions can only be delegated so far as 
members are concerned to those appointed to the Executive.  Thus, Deputy Portfolio Holders 
could not be full members of the Cabinet and therefore cannot participate in its decisions 
either individually or collectively. 
 
6. In the guidance on Council Constitutions issued in 2000 by the then Secretary of 
State, he comments: 
 
“The Executive may invite any person it considers appropriate to attend its meetings and to 
speak on behalf of an absent member of the Executive.  However that person will not be able 
to take formal decisions.  Such a role might help to provide an effective link between the 
Executive and other Councillors and could be an effective developmental role for some 
Councillors.  The Secretary of State advises that it will be inappropriate for such members 
also to be members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee dealing with matters on which 
that person has assisted the Executive”. 
 
7. The Secretary of State’s guidance goes on to say that: 
 
“The Secretary of State believes that allowing formal substitution of Executive members 
would reduce transparency and blur accountability.  An Executive is not therefore able to 
have formal substitute or deputy members who are not themselves members of the 
Executive.  For the same reason the Executive has no powers to co-opt other Councillors or 
anyone else onto the Executive.  If members of the Executive who have a function delegated 
to them are absent (for example on sick leave) or unable to act (for example if they have an 
interest), that function will therefore have to be discharged in accordance with delegations 
under Section 15 of the Act”.  (See paragraph 3 above). 
 
8. We have come to the conclusion that Deputy Portfolio Holders can assist Cabinet 
members in carrying out their duties.  We are clear however that they may not substitute for 
them in making decisions.  Responsibility for the Portfolio and accountability for decisions 
must under the present legal arrangements continue to rest with the appointed Cabinet 
member.  We have been told that in some authorities arrangements are in place for Deputy 
Portfolio Holders to prepare decision documentation for Cabinet reports or Portfolio Holder 
decisions.  In this, they are known to liaise with officers, consult relevant parties and draw up 
reports.  However, in all cases, decisions and Cabinet reports are submitted under the name 
of a Portfolio Holder who remains accountable for those reports. 
 
9. We have paid particular attention to the comments made by the Secretary of State 
under Paragraph 5 above in connection with possible conflicts of interests between Deputies 
who are also members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  We have not thought it 
necessary to prescribe in the Constitution that a Deputy Portfolio Holder must not be a 
member of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  We are content to rely on the provisions 
of the Local Government Code of Conduct whereby a Cabinet member (or in this case a 
Deputy) is precluded from participating in an Overview and Scrutiny review of a decision in 
which they have been involved.  In these circumstances, if a Deputy Portfolio Holder had 
been involved in compiling a Portfolio Holder decision which is subsequently reviewed by 
Overview and Scrutiny, this will probably mean that the member would be excluded from that 
review. 
 

Page 62



(b) List of Duties and Responsibilities which could be given to Assistant Portfolio 
Holders 
 
10. Appendix 3 sets out a proposed “Job Description” for Deputy Portfolio Holders.  This 
is based on a version recently agreed by Essex County Council and was drawn up 
specifically with questions of remuneration in mind. 
 
11. The job description is divided into two parts: 
 
(i) Duties and Responsibilities – which we trust is self-explanatory;  and 
 
(ii) Skills Required, which is divided into two sections: 
 
Basic skills which Deputy Portfolio Holders would need to demonstrate;  and 
 
Developmental skills which a Deputy would be expected to develop so that they can 
contribute to the work of the Cabinet and the Council as a whole. 
 
(c) Amendments to the Constitution including Terms of Office appointment etc 
 
12. We have set out in Appendix 2 to this report suggested amendments to Article 7 of 
the Constitution and the Executive Procedure Rules.  These appointments would be made by 
the Leader of the Council who would have discretion as to the number of deputies and the 
individuals to be selected.  The Leader would report to each Annual Council meeting on the 
Deputy Portfolio Holders to be appointed for the ensuing year.  Any changes made during the 
year would also be reported to Council. 
 
13. It is important in our view to retain clarity and accountability in these appointments. 
We propose that the Leader should specify precisely the nature of the duties to be 
undertaken by the individual concerned.  It should be noted that between 3 and 10 
appointments each year can be made. 
 
(d) Whether Assistants should be “paired” with specific Portfolio Holders 
 
14. We feel that it will be a matter for the Leader of Council to decide how many Deputies 
are required and how they should be organised in relation to Portfolio Holders. 
 
(e) Payment of Special Responsibility Allowances 
 
15. We have been briefed on whether Deputy Portfolio Holders may receive allowances 
for undertaking those duties.  We understand that could be by means of a Special 
Responsibility Allowance.  This would require consideration by the Independent 
Remuneration Panel before it could be adopted.  The Panel would report to the Council and 
the latter would have to take account of its report before making a decision. 
 
16. At this stage, we recommend that as the Deputy Portfolio Holder is a relatively new 
idea, the Council should assess the initial period of operation of these appointments before 
referring the matter to the Remuneration Panel.  The proposed Job Description referred to 
earlier in this report will be part of the submission to the Panel. 
 
17. We recommend as set out of the commencement of this report and we understand 
that it is the intention of the Leader of Council to make appointments this Council year subject 
to Council approval at its next meeting  
 

 
 
 
 

Z:/C/OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY/18 NOVEMBER 2010 – DEPUTIES TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS.doc 
 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Request by Member for Scrutiny Review 
2010/11 Work Programme 

 
 
 
 

Please complete the form below to request consideration of your issue by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
Proposers Name: 
 
Councillor C. Whitbread 

Date of Request 
24.5.10 
 

Supporting Councillors (if any): 
 
 
 
Summary of Issue you wish to be scrutinised: 
 
I wish to propose that the Overview & Scrutiny Committee commission a study 
of the opportunities for setting up assistants to portfolio holders so as to 
assist with portfolio holder duties and aid succession planning. 
 
I would like the review to cover the following matters: 
 
(a) any statutory restrictions on what an assistant can undertake on behalf 

of a Cabinet member or the Cabinet itself; 
(b) a list of duties and responsibilities which could given to assistants; 
(c) amendments to the constitution including terms of office, appointment 

etc; 
(d) whether assistants should be “paired with specific portfolio holders; 
(e) Whether a special responsibility allowance could be applicable to such 

appointments and could be reviewed by the Remuneration Panel on the 
basis of a designed job description. 

 
The Leader of the Council previously experimented with a similar system 
which was operated informally but I feel that this would benefit from being in 
the constitution, as is the case with several other councils of which I am aware. 

 
 
 

NOTE: ENTRIES BELOW RELATE TO ISSUE CATEGORIES OF THE PICK 
PROCESS. PLEASE REFER TO THE EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THIS FORM 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
Public Interest Justification: 
 
The main public interest justification is, in my view that Cabinet operations will 
benefit from wider knowledge of its procedures and responsibilities.  In turn 
this will assist in succession planning as members of the council retire. 
Although this is essentially an internal procedure, the district will, it is hoped, 
see the benefits of an orderly Cabinet handover when membership changes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



 
Impact on the social, economic and environmental well-being of the area: 
 
There is no direct impact on the well being of the District at present. However 
there is no procedure of identifying future talent within the elected 
membership. 
 
An effective way of securing a pool of councillors who can step up to being 
Cabinet members should assist the overall governance of the Council to  the 
benefit of decision making generally. 
 
Another benefit will be to allow delegation of portfolio holder workload to 
ensure that Cabinet work is progressed more effectively. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council Performance in this area (if known: Red, Amber, Green): 
 
This has been tried by the Leader of the Council previously on an informal 
basis. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Keep in Context (are other reviews taking place in this area?) 
 
Not at present 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Office Use: 
Pick score:  Considered By OSCC: 
 

Page 66



Z:\C\WILLETT\L 2010\APPENDIX – SUGGESTED CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS.doc 

APPENDIX 2 
 
 
SUGGESTED CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS – DEPUTY PORTFOLIO HOLDERS 
 
1. Executive Procedure Rules 
 
ADD New Paragraph (to be numbered). 
 
“The Leader of the Council may appoint up to 10 Deputy Portfolio Holders who shall –  
 
(a) assist the designated Cabinet Member in shaping and developing the strategic 

priorities of the Council as it relates to the allocated portfolio. 
 
(b) assist the designated Cabinet Member in monitoring performance in specified areas 

relating to the allocated portfolio. 
 
(c) where appropriate and where permissible under the Council’s Constitution, represent 

the designated Cabinet Member at meetings or visits. 
 
Such appointments shall be at the discretion of the Leader and shall be notified to Council at 
its annual meeting.  The term of office of any Deputy Portfolio Holder shall be for one year 
from the Annual Council meeting concerned but may be varied by the Leader at any time. 
 
Deputy Portfolio Holders shall not be members of the Cabinet, or any Cabinet Committee 
and may not exercise any executive powers, which shall be reserved to Cabinet members 
either collectively or individually. 
 
Deputy Portfolio Holders may, however, be invited to speak at Cabinet or Cabinet 
Committee meetings on matters where they assisted Cabinet members but may not vote.” 
 
2. Article 7 – The Executive 
 
ADD New Paragraph (to be numbered 7.05): 
 
“Deputy Portfolio Holders 
 
The Leader of the Council shall also, at his or her discretion, appoint Deputy Portfolio 
Holders on an annual basis in accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules contained in 
the Constitution.” 
 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Z\C\WILLETT\L 2010\APPENDIX 3 – ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL 

 APPENDIX 3 
 
 
MODEL JOB DESCRIPTION FOR DEPUTIES CABINET MEMBERS 
 
Purpose 
 
To assist and work with the designated Cabinet Member with their responsibility for allocated 
portfolios. 
 
Duties and Responsibilities 
 
1. To assist the designated Cabinet Member in shaping and developing the strategic 

priorities of the Council as it relates to the allocated portfolio. 
 
2. To assist the designated Cabinet Member in monitoring performance in specified 

areas relating to the allocated portfolio. 
 
3. Where appropriate and where permissible under the Council’s Constitution to 

represent the designated Cabinet Member at meetings or visits. 
 
Skills Required 
 
Basic 
 
1. To show good communication and interpersonal skills. 
 
2. To show the ability to analyse and grasp complex issues. 
 
Developmental 
 
3. To develop a good understanding of how local and national and government 

operates. 
 
4. To develop a clear understanding of the operation of the Council and ability to 

contribute to the work of the Cabinet generally. 
 
5. To develop skills in chairing meetings and facilitating open discussion. 
 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
  
Date of meeting: 18 October 2010 

 

 

Report of: Constitution & Member Services Standing Scrutiny Panel 
Portfolio: Leader 

 
Subject: 
 

Addressing Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meetings 
Responsible Officer: 
 

I Willett (01992 564243) 
 

Democratic Services Officer: A Hendry (01992 564246) 
 

   
Recommendations: 
 
That a report be submitted to the Council recommending as follows: 
 
(a) that provision be made in the Executive Procedure Rules in the Constitution to 
regulate arrangements for members of the public or other organisations to address Cabinet 
meetings on agenda business; 
 
(b) that the proposed additional clause in the Executive Procedure Rules set out in 
Appendix 1 to this report be approved; 
 
 (c) that similar provision be made in the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules as set 
out in Appendix 2 to this report in order to provide for similar arrangements to operate at 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings; 
 
(d) that these arrangements be reviewed in 12 months’ time; 
 
Report: 
 
1. We have been asked to examine the question of how requests to address Cabinet 
meetings should be dealt with.  There have been a few occasions over recent months when 
requests were made by external organisations or individuals to address Cabinet meetings on 
items of concern which were on the agenda.  This has highlighted the fact that there is no 
specific provision in the Constitution for these representations to be made, reliance being 
placed on the Leader of Council’s discretion as the Chairman at Cabinet meetings. 
 
Current Arrangements – Questions by the Public at Cabinet and Council Meetings 
 
2. We have examined the arrangements currently in place for asking questions at 
Council and Cabinet meetings.  At Cabinet, the Executive Procedure Rules allow 15 minutes 
to be allocated to questions from the public.  Any questions which are out of time are then 
held over until the next meeting.  A maximum of two questions per member of the public is 
allowed and there is no requirement to submit a question in writing beforehand.  However, 
interested people are requested to register their interest by 4.00pm on the day of the Cabinet 
meeting, giving their name, address and the subject matter in question. 
 
3. At Council meetings the arrangements are a little different:  questions must be 
submitted in writing by midday, seven days before the Council meeting.  The person 
concerned is notified within 48 hours as to whether the question is valid. 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 71



Conclusions on Questions 
 
4. The Council’s arrangements for public questions are helpful in giving guidance on a 
number of points in connection with addressing Cabinet meetings.  However, we feel that 
asking questions is different from making representations.  We have therefore looked 
specifically at the Area Plans Sub-Committees where arrangements exist for the public to 
make representation on planning matters. 
 
Representations at Area Plans Sub-Committees 
 
5. At Area Plans Sub-Committees a speaker must register with the Council by 4.00pm 
on the day before the meeting and are allocated a maximum of three minutes (which may be 
extended at the discretion of the Chairman).  This can then be accompanied by a circulation 
of additional information also at the discretion of the Chairman.  There are restrictions on the 
number of objectors who can speak on any one application. 
 
Addressing the Cabinet 
 
6. We feel that the Constitution should make provision for outside organisations and 
individuals to address the Cabinet on matters of concern.  This would be in line with the 
ability of the public to do so at Area Plans Sub-Committees.  In summary, we would 
recommend that the system should operate in the following way: 
 
(a) organisations or individuals should only be able to address Cabinet meetings on items 
which are on agenda as we feel that “open ended” invitations will put great pressure on the 
time available to the Cabinet to transact its business; 
 
(b) a maximum of two persons being able to address the Cabinet on an item subject to a 
to no more than three such items on any one agenda; 
 
(c) each person or organisation should be allocated three minutes to address the Cabinet 
on the matter in hand; 
 
(d) the deadline for requests should be 4.00pm on the day of the Cabinet meeting without 
written notice being required; 
 
(e) these arrangements to be managed by Democratic Services staff on the basis of “first 
come, first served”; 
 
(f) arrangements are not to apply to Cabinet Committees. 
 
7. Appendix 1 to this report sets out draft revisions to the Executive Procedure Rules to 
give effect to these proposals. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
 
8. At present, the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules allow the Committee or a 
Panel of Overview and Scrutiny to invite members of the public or outside organisations to 
attend for the purpose of giving evidence or submitting views.  We feel, however, that 
Overview and Scrutiny should have the same provision in its rules as those suggested above 
in relation to the Cabinet.   
 

Page 72



9. In practice, the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been willing to 
accept such representations on an ad hoc basis but, as with the Cabinet, we feel that this 
needs to be included in the Constitution.  With this in mind, Appendix 2 to this report sets out 
a new section to be inserted into the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules. 
 
Further Review 
 
10. We recommend that in a year’s time, there should be a review of these arrangements. 
 
11. We recommend as set out at the commencement of this report. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Z:/C/Overview and Scrutiny/18 October 2010 – Addressing Cabinet Meetings 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Z\COMM\OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY\APPENDIX 1 – PROPOSED REVISION TO PROCEDURE RULES 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 
PROPOSED REVISION TO EXECUTIVE PROCEDURE RULES 
 
Add new paragraph 5: 
 
“5. REQUESTS BY THE PUBLIC/OUTSIDE ORGANISATIONS TO ADDRESS THE 

CABINET 
 
(a) Any member of the public or a representative of an outside organisation may address 

the Cabinet on any agenda item (except those dealt with in private session as 
exempt or confidential business) due to be considered at a meeting. 

 
(b) The following rules shall apply to such requests: 
 
 (i) requests must relate to an existing agenda item; 
 
 (ii) requests must not raise new business for the meeting concerned; 
 
 (iii) all requests must be notified to the Council by 4 pm on the day of the 

meeting; 
 
 (iv) requests need not be in writing; 
 
 (v) a maximum of two persons shall be permitted to address the Cabinet on any 

one agenda item; 
 
 (vi) no more than three items on an individual Cabinet meeting agenda may be 

the subject of addresses by the public or other organisations; 
 
 (vii) a time limit of 3 minutes per speaker shall apply; 
 
 (viii) if the number of requests to address the Cabinet exceeds the maximum of 

six, they will be prioritised by reference to date of receipt; 
 
 (ix) this procedure shall not apply to Cabinet Committees.” 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Z\COMM\OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY\APPENDIX 2 – PROPOSED REVISION TO THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
PROCEDURE RULES 

 

APPENDIX 2 
 

PROPOSED REVISION TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES 
 
 
Add new paragraph 19.2 as follows: 
 
“19.2 Any member of the public or a representative of an outside organisation may address 

the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on any agenda item (except those dealt with in 
private session as exempt or confidential business) due to be considered at a 
meeting.  The following rules shall apply to such requests: 

 
 (i) requests must relate to an existing agenda item; 
 
 (ii) requests must not raise new business for the meeting concerned; 
 
 (iii) all requests must be notified to the Council by 4 pm on the day of the 

meeting; 
 
 (iv) requests need not be in writing; 
 
 (v) a maximum of two persons shall be permitted to address the Committee on 

any one agenda item; 
 

(vi) no more than three items on an individual Cabinet meeting agenda may be 
the subject of addresses by the public or other organisations; 

 
 (vii) a time limit of 3 minutes per speaker shall apply; 
 
 (viii) if the number of requests to address the Committee exceeds the maximum of 

six, they will be prioritised by reference to date of receipt.” 
 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Z:/C/OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY/18 OCTOBER 2010 – CANCELLATION OF MTGS – EXTREME WEATHER 
CONDITIONS.doc 

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
Report of: Constitution & Member Services 
Standing Scrutiny Panel 
  
Date of meeting: 
 

18 October 2010 

 

Portfolio Holder: Leader 
Subject: 
 

Cancellation of Meetings – Extreme Weather Conditions 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

I Willett (01992 564243) 
Democratic Services Officer: M Jenkins (01992 564607) 
   
Recommendations: 
 
(1) That the Constitution be amended to provide procedures for the cancellation of 
meetings;  and 
 
(2) That a report be submitted to the Council recommending that the proposed 
amendment to the Council Procedure Rules as set out in the Appendix to this report 
be approved. 
 
Report: 
 
1. During the severe weather earlier in the year, transport conditions were so difficult, 
that one or two meetings were cancelled due to safety concerns and the quorum.  At that 
time, the question was raised as to the procedure for cancelling meetings. 
 
2. There are two elements in this process: 
 
 (a) the decision to cancel;  and 
 
 (b) notifying interested parties. 
 
3. The present protocol (which is unwritten) is that cancellation of meetings, whether due 
to extreme circumstances or lack of business is a matter that would initially be referred by 
Democratic Services staff to the Chairman concerned.  If the Chairman agrees, it is for 
Democratic Services staff to communicate this decision to the members of the body 
concerned, place notices on the website and in reception for the benefit of the public, to 
cancel accommodation and Superintendent cover, and to advise any other individuals who 
are known to be due to attend the meeting from the public etc.  When meetings are cancelled 
due to lack of business, this process is usually fairly simply achieved.  However, with 
situations like extreme weather conditions, it often has to be carried out at the last moment. 
 
4. We feel that it would be helpful if there were specific provision for cancellation of 
meetings in the Constitution and we recommend an alteration to the Council Procedure Rules 
as set out in the Appendix to this report. 
 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 79



Z:/C/OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY/18 OCTOBER 2010 – CANCELLATION OF MTGS – EXTREME WEATHER 
CONDITIONS.doc 

APPENDIX 
 
 
CANCELLATION OF MEETINGS – PROPOSED ALTERATIONS TO THE 
CONSTITUTION 
 
(a) Council Procedure Rules 
 
ADD new Procedural Rule (to be numbered 5) 
 
“Cancellation of Meetings 
 
The decision to cancel any meeting of the Council shall be made by the Chairman in 
consultation with the Chief Executive (or his representative).  In circumstances where 
a meeting has to be cancelled for reasons which are outside the Council’s control at 
short notice, the decision to cancel shall be made no later than 2 hours before the 
commencement of the meeting and notified to all Councillors and other interested 
persons as soon as possible thereafter.” 
 
AMEND existing Procedural Rule 24 by adding the following words: 
 
“The requirements of Procedure Rule 5 (Cancellation of Meetings) above shall apply 
to the Cabinet, Committees, Panels and Sub-Committees and any other meeting 
convened by the Authority. 

 
 

Page 80



As at: October 2010  1 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme – October 2010  
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Item Report Deadline / 

Priority Progress / Comments Programme of 
Future Meetings 

(1) Scrutiny of London 
Underground Ltd 

June 2010 
 

Came in June 2010. 

(2) OS Annual Review/ Annual 
Report  

April 2011 2010/11 Final Report to go to April 11 meeting. 

(3) Scrutiny of Epping Forest 
Local Strategic Partnership –
Chairman and Member level 
EFDC representatives   
 

Went to July 2010 meeting Last came in July 2010 - Representatives of the 
partnership to report on an annual basis. 
 

(4) Scrutiny of Cabinet Forward 
Plan  

November 2010 Last looked at in March 2010; to review again when 
Cabinet next consider their forward plan. 

(5) Six monthly review  -  
 
(a) Monitoring of OS 
recommendations  
 
(b) OS work programme 
 

November 2010 Last completed in November 09 
 
 

01 June 2010 
12 July 
06 September 
18 October 
29 November 
24 January 2011 
28 February; and 
11 April 

A
genda Item

 10

P
age 81



As at: October 2010  2 

(6) To review the strategic 
direction of Epping Forest 
College, its vision for the future 
and its relationship with the 
Community 
 

To October 2010 meeting. 
 

 
Principal of Epping Forest College addressed the 
December 2008 meeting. To be invited sometime in 
2010.  

(7) Budget Report January 2011 Last completed January 2010 

(8) Debt Management Review. Considered in November 
2009. 
A further review report was 
submitted in July 2010. 

Completed – originally went to November 09 
meeting. A sub-committee, consisting of four 
members had been constituted to look into this topic.  

(9) Review of Secondary and 
Primary education in the District 
and to focus on the link between 
Education and deprivation in the 
District. 

In 2010 To ask the appropriate County Officer or Portfolio 
Holder to attend a future meeting. 

(10) To receive a presentation 
from Youth Council members November 2010 

Went to November 09 meeting. As last year, 
members of the Youth Council will attend with 
proposals for their funding bid for 2011/12 and give 
an update on their developing programme. 

(11) To receive a presentation 
from ‘Connectplus25’.  September 2010 

Came in September 2010. 
‘Connectplus25’ are responsible for the M25 works 
for the next thirty years. They wish to engage the 
community and set up a dialogue with the District. 

 

P
age 82



As at: October 2010  3 

(12) Broadband  access in the 
District Looking to November 2010 

BT and one other service provider to be asked to 
address the O&S Committee on access to 
broadband and speeds for the Epping Forest District 
Area. 

 

P
age 83



As at: October 2010  4 

Standing Panels  
Housing Standing Panel (Chairman – Cllr S Murray) 

Item 
Report 

Deadline / 
Priority 

Progress / Comments Programme of 
Future Meetings 

(1) Revised Date for meeting 
schedule 28 April 2011 Low Completed at July 2010 Meeting 
(2) Presentation on 
Homelessness Prevention Low Completed at July 2010 Meeting 
(3) Annual Ethnic Monitoring 
Review of Housing Applicants High Completed at July 2010 Meeting 

(4) Review of Housing 
Performance Indicators Low Completed at July 2010 Meeting 

(5) Continuous Housing 
Improvement Strategy High Not yet produced (due to other commitments) – Deferred to 

October 2010 Meeting 
(6) Value for Money Strategy in 
the Provision of Housing Services High Not yet produced (due to other commitments) – deferred to 

October 2010 meeting 
(7) Annual Review of Housing 
Allocations Scheme High Completed at July 2010 Meeting 
(8) Housing Service Strategy on 
Information (Review and Update) Medium Not yet produced (due to other commitments) – Deferred to 

October 2010 meeting 
(9) Housing Service Strategy on 
Private Rented Sector (Review 
and Update) 

Medium Completed at July 2010 Meeting 

29 July 2010 
8 September 2010 
– Special Meeting 
12 October – Joint 
Meeting with 
Finance & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
28 October 
27 January 2011; 
and 
24 March 2011 

P
age 84



As at: October 2010  5 

(10) Housing Service Strategy on 
Empty Properties (Review and 
Update) 

Medium Not yet produced (due to other commitments) – Deferred to 
October 2010 meeting 

(11) Housing Service Strategy on 
Tenant Participation (Review and 
Update) 

Medium Not yet produced (due to other commitments) – Deferred to 
October 2010 meeting 

(12) Tenant Participation Impact 
Assessment High Completed at July 2010 Meeting 

(13) 12 Month Progress Report 
on Housing Strategy Action Plan 
2009/10 Low Completed at July 2010 Meeting 

(14) Housing Strategy Action Plan 
2010/11 High Completed at July 2010 Meeting 

 

(15) Review of Housing Service 
Standards High Completed at July 2010 Meeting 

(16) Tenant Participation Impact 
Assessment High Completed at July 2010 Meeting 

(17) Six Monthly Progress Report 
on the Housing Regulatory 
Framework Action Plan Low Not yet required (October 2010) 

(18) Six Monthly Progress Report 
on Housing Business Action Plan Low Not yet required 

 

P
age 85



As at: October 2010  6 

(19) Homelessness Strategy – 
Action Plan Progress Report Low Not yet required (October 2010) 

(20) Housing Service Strategy on 
Rent Arrears (Review and 
update) Medium Not yet required (October 2010) 

(21) Housing Service Strategy on 
Anti-Social Behaviour (Review 
and Update) Medium Not yet required (October 2010) 

 
(22) Housing Service Strategy on 
Energy Efficiency (Review and 
update) 

Medium Not yet required (October 2010) 
 

 
(23) Briefing on the proposed 
Council rent increase for 2010/11 Low Not yet required (March 2011) 

 

 
(24) 12-monthly Progress Report 
on Housing Business Action Plan Low Not yet required (March 2011) 

 

 
(25) Six Monthly Progress Report 
on Housing Strategy Action Plan 
2010/11 

Low Not yet required (March 2011) 
 

 
(26) HRA Business Plan 2011/12 High Not yet required (March 2011) 

 

(27) Annual Report on the 
HomeOption Choice Based 
Lettings Scheme Low Not yet required (March 2011) 

 

P
age 86



As at: October 2010  7 

(28) HouseMark Benchmarking 
Report on value for Money of 
Housing Services Medium Not yet required (March 2011) 

 

(29) Housing Customer 
Perspective Programme – Action 
Plan and Progress Report Low Completed at July 2010 Meeting 

 

(30) Tenant Satisfaction Surveys 
2009/10 – Comparisons with 
other stock-retained councils Low Completed at July 2010 Meeting 

 

(31) Review of proposed Licence 
Conditions for Park Homes – 
Referred by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to a Special 
Meeting of the Housing Scrutiny 
Panel 

High 
Completed - Review undertaken at Special Meeting of Panel 
on 8 September 2010. Consultation will follow and referral 
to the Cabinet in October 2010. 

 

 

P
age 87



As at: October 2010  8 

 

Constitution and Member Services Standing Panel (Chairman – Cllr Mrs McEwen) 
Item Report Deadline / 

Priority 
Progress / Comments Programme of Future 

Meetings 
(1) Review of May 2010 Elections 24 June 2010 Completed at 24 June 2010 Panel Meeting 

(2) Cancellation of meetings because 
of inclement weather 23 September 2010 To O&S Cttee. In October 2010 

(3) Executive Procedure Rules – 
Speakers at Cabinet 23 September 2010 To O&S Cttee. in October 2010. 

(4) Assistant to Portfolio Holders 23 September 2010 To O&S Cttee. in October 2010. 

(5) E-Petitions 9 November 2010 

 
Initial discussion at Panel meeting in June 
2010. there will be further discussion around 
the implementation of the scheme and the 
petition thresholds. 

(6) Appointments at annual Council 9 November 2010  

24 June 2010 
23 September 
9 November (Extra 
Meeting) 
16 December; and 
17 March 2011 

P
age 88



As at: October 2010  9 

(7) Head of Paid Service, Monitoring 
Officer & Chief Finance Officer (Draft 
Protocol) 

9 November 2010  
 

(8) Member Role Accountability 
Statements 9 November 2010  

 

(9) Cabinet Meetings – “Guillotine” 16 December 2010  
 

(10) Member Training Review 16 December 2010  
 

(11) Annual Review of Financial 
Regulations including E Invoices 16 December 2010  

 

(12) Annual Review of Contract 
Standing Orders 17 March 2011  

 

(13) Annual Review of Officer 
Delegation 17 March 2011  

 

(14) Planning/Landowner Roles – 
details to be confirmed To be determined 

Further discussion between Councillor L 
Wagland and Legal Staff on the scope of the 
report. 

 

(15) Referendum on an Elected Mayor To be determined  
 

P
age 89



As at: October 2010  10 

 
Safer, Cleaner, Greener Standing Panel (Chairman – Cllr Ms C Edwards) 

Item Report Deadline / 
Priority Progress / Comments Programme of 

Future Meetings 
(1) Safer, cleaner, greener strategy 

 
(a) Enforcement activity – half 
 yearly report. 
 
(b) SCG Strategy Action Plan – 

half yearly report. 
 
(c) Review strategy. 
 

 
 
July 2010 
January 2011 
 
July 2010 
January 2011 
 
July 2010 
January 2011 

 
 
(a) Received half Yearly report in July 2010. 
(b) Received Strategy Action plan in July 2010. 
(c)  

(2)     Community Safety 
 

(a) CCTV action plan – half yearly 
report. 

 
(b) Receive reports from 

Community Safety Scrutiny 
meetings. 

 
 

 
 
July 2010 
January 2011 
 
To be determined 

 
 
(a) Received CCTV half yearly report in July 2010. 

1 July 2010 
 
26 August 
(extra meeting) 
 
7 October 
6 January 2011 
24 February; and 
7 April 

P
age 90



As at: October 2010  11 

(3)  Essex Waste procurement 
process and Joint Committee  

 
(a) Receive notes/minutes of 

Member Partnership Board. 
 
(b) Receive notes/minutes of Inter 

Authority Member Group. 
 

 

 
 
 
To be determined. 
 
 
To be determined 

As and when available. 

(4) Waste Management 
Partnership Board  

 
(a) Receive minutes of Partnership 

Board. 
 
(b) Progress of recycling in flats 

and similar buildings. 
 

(c) Review of weather disruptions 
to services 

 
 
 
To be determined. 
 
 
July 2010 
January 2011 
 
July 2010 

 
 

(a) Minutes received at the July 2010 meeting. 
(b)   
(c) Reviewed at July 2010 meeting. 

(5) Nottingham Declaration  
 
(a) Progress against Declaration 

pledges – half yearly reports. 
 
(b) Climate change strategy action 

plan – half yearly reports. 

 
 
July 2010 
January 2011 
 
July 2010 
January 2011 
 

 
 

(a) Updated given at July 2010 meeting. 
(b)  

P
age 91



As at: October 2010  12 

(6) Bobbingworth Tip  
 

(a) Receive reports on availability 
for public access. 

 
(b) Receive notes/minutes of 

management/liaison group. 
 

 
 
July 2010 
To be determined 
 
To be determined 

 
 

(a) Update given ay July 2010 meeting. 
(b)  

(7) Leisure Issues. 
 
(a) Receive progress reports on 
new sports hall at WASP 
 
(c) Receive progress reports on 

youth initiatives & play strategy. 
 

 
 
July 2010 
 
 
October 2010 

 
(a) Update given at July 2010 meeting. 
(b)  Big Lottery Play Strategy Funding £243,871 
Following a two year construction programme, 
five new play & youth facilities are now fully 
operational in the key locations identified as part 
of the district Play Strategy Audit. These include: 
 a new and part refurbished playground and fully 
refurbished multi-use games area at Limes 
Farm, Chigwell   a new playground for infants 
and juniors and a youth facility in Nazeing a new 
playground for juniors and multi-sport goal -end 
in AbridgeAll facilities are being extremely well 
used and anticipated initial vandalism has been 
minimal. 
 Officers are currently awaiting confirmation of 
whether a bid for £50,000 to BLF Playbuilder 
Fund will be successful, following significant cuts 
in funding. 
  

 

P
age 92



As at: October 2010  13 

 
Planning Services Standing Panel (Chairman – Cllr J Philip) 

Item Report Deadline / 
Priority Progress / Comments Programme of 

Future Meetings 
(1)  
 
(a) Regional Plan 
 
(b) Local Development Framework 
 
(c) Current Staffing  
 
(d) Improvement Plan 

Regular updating 
reports 

Report on new LDF Scheme & implications for S106 
agreements, new draft policy required. 
LDF timeline to be presented. 
Development Document Site Allocations Issues and 
Options Paper. 
Updated Staffing Family Tree 

3 June 2010 
2 September 
11 October – Extra 
Ordinary Meeting 
2 December; and 
3 March 2011 

P
age 93



As at: October 2010  14 

(2) Value for Money Provision: 
 
(a) Administration & Customer Support 
 
(b) Building Control 
 
(c) Development Control (including 
Appeals) 
 
 
(d) Economic Development 
 
 
 
(e) Enforcement 
 
 
 
 
 
(f) Environment Team 
 
(g) Forward Planning 
 
(h) Performance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VFM Task and Finish report went to September 08 
meeting and the November 08 O&S Cttee meeting 
where it was endorsed. 
 
 
 
Bring back report on District Council/Appeals 
annually on Value for Money work commenced in 
2008. 
 
To include response to Economic Downturn. 
Revised report on enforcement process for January 
2010 (See Item 7) Timescale on flowchart. 
 
Timescale on flowchart 

(3) Chairmen and Vice Chairmen of 
Area Planning Cttees to be invited to a 
meeting to provide feedback. 

 A meeting of the Chairmen & Vice Chairmen of 
Planning Sub-Committees, District Development 
Control Committee and Planning Portfolio Holders 
took place on 2 August 2010. Results will be fed 
back to Panel regularly. Meetings will take place on a 
frequent basis. 

P
age 94



As at: October 2010  15 

(4) Report from Legal on performance 
at Planning Appeals 

June 2009 COMPLETED 

(5) Comments from the planning 
agents and amenity groups required 
matching 

 N Richardson, Asst Director of Planning, to arrange 
a date, time and venue. 

(6) That a report be produced for the 
Panel setting out the possible route 
any planning enforcement investigation 
could take. 

 A further report was required with financial 
implications. 

 

(7) Review the Corporate Planning 
protocol with respect to dealing with 
applicants, agents, developers and the 
local business community to ensure 
that the highest standards of probity 
and governance are achieved. 

February 2010 meeting   

(8) To review a selection of 
controversial planning decisions to see 
if lessons can be learnt from their 
consideration. 

On agenda for 2 
September 2010 Panel 
meeting 

This item has been extracted from the Terms of 
Reference of the Provision for Value for Money 
within Planning Services Task and Finish Panel and 
the current Panel. 

 

(9) To consider whether the reporting 
arrangements for Terms of Reference 
sections and those from the Section 
106s (including how they are 
negotiated agreed and implemented 
strategically to secure community 
benefit), and appeals are sufficient 
(including how new legislation impacts 
on these) and recommend accordingly 

 This item has been extracted from the Terms of 
Reference of the Provision for Value for Money 
within Planning Services Task and Finish Panel and 
the current Panel. 

 

P
age 95



As at: October 2010  16 

(10) Best Value Review Received update in 
February 2010 

  

(11) Planning conditions controlling 
damage to highways infrastructure 

December 2010 Referred from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
– March 2010. 

 

(12) Contributions to affordable 
housing 

New Item   

(13) Arrange visit to other planning 
authorities to learn from their work. 

New Item   

(14) Countrycare Submitted to 2 
September 2010 
meeting 

COMPLETED – (Future structure of Countrycare 
following departure of Paul Hewitt) 

 

(15) Consultations from Hertfordshire 
Councils regarding Core Strategies. 

New Item – October 
2010 Meeting 

Consultations to be considered at extra-ordinary 
Panel meeting on October 11 2010. 

 

 

P
age 96



As at: October 2010  17 

 
Finance and Performance Management Standing Panel (Chairman – Cllr G Mohindra) 

Item Report Deadline / 
Priority Progress / Comments Programme of 

Future Meetings 
(1) Key Performance Indicators – 
Performance Outturn 2009/10 

Performance report to 
be considered at year 
end. 
Considered at the June 
’10 meeting. 
 

Outturn KPI performance report for 2009/10. Considered 
at the meeting to be held on 10 June 2010. Performance 
report to be produced for inclusion in E-Annual Report in 
place of former Best  Value Performance Plan. 

(2) Key Performance Indicators – 
Performance Monitoring 2010/11 

Performance report to 
be considered on a 
quarterly basis. 
. 

Quarterly KPI performance report for 2010/11 to be 
considered at the meetings to be held on 09 September 
2010, 09 December 2010 and 10 March 2011. 

(3) Quarterly Financial Monitoring Reports to be 
considered on a 
quarterly basis. 

First quarter Information to be considered September 10, 
2nd quarter in December 10 and 3rd quarter figures at the 
March ’11 meeting. 

(4) Council Plan 2006-2010 
Performance Monitoring  

Performance report 
considered on an 
annual basis.  
Report went to the 
June ’10 meeting. 

Performance report for the final year of the Council Plan 
(2009/10). Considered at the meeting held on 10 June 
2010. 

10 June 2010 
9 September 
9 December 
17 January 2011; 
and 
10 March 

P
age 97



As at: October 2010  18 

(5) Cost and Performance 
Benchmarking Analysis 

Analysis updated on an 
annual basis to reflect 
the latest available cost 
and performance 
information published 
by the Audit 
Commission. The 
meeting in June ’10 set 
up a sub-committee. 

The Audit Commission’s annual ‘Value for Money Profiles’ 
are published during March each year. The Cost and 
Performance Benchmarking Analysis is developed from 
this tool and will be considered by a sub-group of the 
Scrutiny Panel as early as possible in the municipal year. 

(6) Annual Consultation Plan  Report considered on 
an annual basis. 
Report went to the 
June ’10 meeting. 

Consultation Plan considered at first meeting of each 
municipal year. Report went to the June 2010 meeting, 

(7) Detailed Portfolio Budgets Went to the January 
2010 meeting. 

Considered at the January ‘10 - Annual review of the 
Portfolio Holders Budgets. To go again to the January 
2011 meeting. 

(8) Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 

 To review the Council’s medium term financial strategy 
January 2011. 

(9) Equality and Diversity -  
Monitoring and Progress  

Report considered on 
an annual basis. 
Report went to the 
June ’10 meeting. 

An annual report in respect of progress against the 
Council’s equality schemes and other initiatives will be 
made to the first meeting in each municipal year. 

(10) Capital Outturn 2009/10 and 
use of transitional relief in 
2009/10 

Considered at the June 
’10 meeting. 

Last considered at the June 2010 meeting 

(11) Provisional revenue Outturn 
2009/10 

Considered at the June 
’10 meeting. 

Last considered at the June 2010 meeting 

(12) Fee and Charges December 2010 Last considered at the November 2009 meeting 

P
age 98



As at: October 2010  19 

(13)  Customer transformation 
T&F Panel work 

Report went to 17 
November 2009 
meeting. A follow up 
report to be considered 
at a subsequent 
meeting 

Work of the disbanded the Customer Transformation Task 
and Finish Panel was placed with the Finance and 
Performance Management Standing Scrutiny Panel. The 
Cabinet at their meeting in February 2009 agreed the 
recommendations with the proviso at (3) that: 
“(1) That, given the increasing importance of the Council’s 
Website for communication, information and electronic 
interactions, the level of dedicated resource to the 
maintenance and development of the Council’s Website 
be increased; 
(2) That a District Development Fund bid be made to fund 
an additional Grade 5 Website Support Officer on a three-
year fixed term contract as part of the budget process for 
2009/10, at an estimated cost of £25,000 per annum 
subject to job evaluation; and 
(3) That the Task and Finish Panel on Customer 
Transformation be requested to reconvene and further 
prioritise the remaining seven recommendations of the 
original report.” 
 

 

 
 

P
age 99



As at: October 2010  20 

 
Task and Finish Panels 

 

Provision of  Children Services in the District (Chairman – Cllr Mrs L Wagland) 

Item Report Deadline / 
Priority  Programme of 

Future Meetings 
First meeting to define Terms of 
Reference. 

 

 

21 September 2010 
5 November 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 100



CHILDREN SERVICES TASK AND FINISH PANEL: TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
Origin: 
 
The Cabinet at its meeting on 8 March 2010 considered a report about Essex Children’s Trust. The 
Children’s Act 2004 provided the legal underpinning for the national framework established by 
“Every Child Matters: Change for Children” with District Councils having a duty to cooperate in the 
making of arrangements to improve well being for children and young people 19 years or under. 
The most specific duty is to safeguard and promote the welfare of children alongside the more 
general “duty to cooperate” within Children’s Trust arrangements. 
 
At the inaugural meeting of the Essex Children’s Trust Partnership Board on 27 November 2009 it 
had been agreed that a Memorandum of Agreement be entered into by all the constituent partners 
with the aim of demonstrating a commitment to a shared approach and to get all the partners 
working together to achieve common objectives. 
 
The Cabinet decided that the Memorandum of agreement should not be signed as it did not appear 
to be clear, concise and contain specific proposals to safeguard the welfare of children or an 
assurance that Essex County Council would embrace best practice. The cabinet expressed the view 
that the emphasis appeared to be on bureaucracy rather than results, with as much responsibility as 
possible delegated to the borough and district councils. The Cabinet also requested that a Task and 
Finish Scrutiny Panel should be established to examine the Council’s approach to Children’s 
Services and its provision throughout the District. 
 
At its meeting on 15 April 2010, the Overview and scrutiny Committee agreed that a Task and 
Finish Scrutiny Panel should be established to examine the Council’s approach to Children’s 
Services and its provision throughout the District and to review the provision of the Essex County 
Council Youth Service within the District. 
 
Draft Terms of Reference: 
 
 
 

1. To review the Essex Children’s Trust Memorandum of Agreement in respect of children’s 
services across Essex. 

 
2. To review the purpose, operation and effectiveness of West Essex Children’s Trust Board 

and the Essex Children’s Trust structure. 
 
3. To review current provision of children’s and young people’s services in the District including 

identifying the level of activity directly provided by the Council and the key responsibilities 
devolved to the Council under the Children’s Trust arrangements. 

 
4. To review the provision of Essex County Council Youth Services in the Epping Forest 

District, seeking to identify future needs and how these can best be met by the various 
Agencies involved in the delivery of Young People’s Services. 

 
5. To review current arrangements for Safeguarding and Promoting the Welfare of Epping 

Forest’s Children, seeking to identify communication pathways and effectiveness of 
information sharing, including: 

 

• the Council’s own policies and procedures; 
• West Essex Stay Safe Group;  
• ECC Stay Safe Group, and, 

Agenda Item 11

Page 101



CHILDREN SERVICES TASK AND FINISH PANEL: TERMS OF REFERENCE 

• Essex Safeguarding Children Board 
 
 
 
 
 
Aims and Objectives: 
 
To gather evidence and information in relation to the topics through the receipt of data, 
presentations and by participation in fact finding visits; 
 
To consult with Partners, Agencies, Stakeholders and Users of the services under review, to 
establish key issues and future need;  
 
To evaluate all relevant facts in relation to the topics under review in an objective way and to 
produce recommendations for future action accordingly; 
 
To establish whether there are any resource implications arising out of the topics under review and 
advise Cabinet for inclusion in the Budget Process 2011/12; and 
 
To report back to Overview and Scrutiny Committee at appropriate intervals and to submit any final 
reports in the proposed Corporate Format for consideration by O & S, the Cabinet and Council. 
 
TIMESCALE ESTIMATED ACTUAL 

Commencement September  2010 September 2010 
Finish 
1.  Interim report to include 
any budgetary items for the 
next budget round. 
 
2. As a time limited review - 
to end by ? 2011. 
 
 
 

 
By October 2010 (if 
needed). 
 
 
 
?  2011 

Officers to consult Finance to establish 
if the Panel should put an interim bid 
for next years budget round. 

 

Page 102


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES
	7 Deputy Portfolio Holders - Report of Constitution & Member Services Standing Scrutiny Panel (23.9.10)
	Request by Member for Scrutiny Review
	APPENDIX - SUGGESTED CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS
	APPENDIX 3 - Dep PFH JD

	8 Cabinet & Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Addresses by the Public
	APPENDIX 1 - PROPOSED REVISION TO EXECUTIVE PROCEDURE RULES
	APPENDIX 2 - PROPOSED REVISION TO THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PROCEDURE

	9 Cancellation of Meetings
	10 WORK PROGRAMME MONITORING
	11 Children Services Task and Finish Panel - Terms of Reference

